
 

 

Town of Lyman 
Select Board Regular Meeting Agenda 

Monday April 3rd, 2023 – Lyman Town Hall 
Welcome to the April 3rd, 2023, Regular Meeting of The Lyman Board of Selectmen. 

This meeting is a public proceeding and is being recorded. 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
 

ITEM #1 SPECIAL OFFERS/ PRESENTATIONS 
 

ITEM #2 HEARING OF DELEGATIONS / PUBLIC INPUT 
a. Public Input – Public in attendance will have up to 5 minutes to address the Board.  

Please use the podium to address the board.  
b. Mail       •York County Sheriff’s insider bulletin.   •York County Sherriff’s Monthly Report 
c. Complaints 

 

ITEM #3 MINUTES 
a. Review / Approve meeting minutes 3/20/2023. 

 

ITEM #4 SIGN WARRANTS  
a. Payroll Warrant #43 in the amount of $25,430.52 
b. Accounts Payable Warrant #42 (FY2023) in the amount of $606,761.41 

 

ITEM #5 UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
a. ARPA funding – discuss RFPs. Where are we at?  
b. Planning Board – Request for Ordinance Amendment to be put to Town Vote 
c. Requested Waivers for Insurance Requirements, discussion from last meeting. 

•Parks & Recs, re: Musicians         •Town Clerk, re: Moderator  
d. Stagecoach Road, discussion from last meeting.  
e. Review/ Approve Field Use Request forms.  
f. IT Committee – approve a statement of purpose. 
g. Bunganut Committee – discussion from last meeting 

 

ITEM #6 DEPARTMENT AND COMMITTEE REPORTS  
a. Road Commissioner –  
b. Fire Chief – 
c. Tax Clerk –  
d. CEO – Question re: building permits on Discontinued roads. Review Updated Zoning map 
e. Treasurer – Expense Report 
h. Town Hall Expansion Committee – Open RFP’s for Architect/Engineer Services 
f. Other  -  

 

ITEM #7 NEW BUSINESS 
a. Request for Board approval on expenses for TRIO Upgrade, see memo.  
b. Review Hold Harmless for tree cutting, Contractor requesting sub-letting approval 
c. Review Hold Harmless for Jim Murphy, Contractor requesting waivers.  
d. Appointment, review/approve committee application for Bunganut Committee 

•William Single   • Michelle Feliccitti 
e. Appointment, review/approve committee application for IT Committee  

•William Single   • Michelle Feliccitti 
 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 
1.M.R.S.A §405 (A) personnel matters 
OTHER 
ADJOURN 



 Message from: 

         Sheriff William L. King Jr. 

Jan - March 2023 Volume 1 

Dear Town Leader, 

     This bulletin is designed to make you aware of the 
work being done by the York County Sheriff’s Office. 
Our three major divisions, Patrol, Corrections, and Civil 
Processing deliver exceptional service to York County 

Communities.  

     The Sheriff’s Office modified their call share agreement 
with the Maine State Police to better serve our communities. 
The State Police reorganized and created a Southern 
Field Troop command with a concentration of troopers 
assigned to northern York County and southern Oxford 
and Cumberland Counties – as such, this concentration 
provides a quicker response to those northern communities 
like Limington, Cornish, Hollis, Limerick, and Parsonsfield 
(part time). The Sheriff’s Office has primary responsibility 
for the other York County Towns that do not have an orga-

nized Police Department. 

     Thus far, we believe this has provided more efficient 

policing services to our towns. 

     The Jail continues to be a leader in contemporary 
corrections and addressing the opioid epidemic that leads 
to many individuals to become justice connected. As such, 
we have the largest medicated assisted treatment 
program, often referred to as “MAT”, of all county jails. 
Once stabilized on MAT, an individual can better focus on 
the emotional work that is required to address the root 
causes of their addiction. We believe this effort will pay off 
with reduced recidivism and releasing residents to be 

Deputy Spotlight 

Deputy Alexander Markellos was 
born and raised in Maine and has 
served as a Law Enforcement Of-
ficer for 5 years. He began his 
career as a Patrol Officer for the 
City of Lewiston and has been 
with the York County Sheriff’s 
Office since April of 2021.   

Before graduating from the 
36th Basic Law Enforcement Training Program at the Maine 
Criminal Justice Academy Deputy Markellos graduated 
from The Citadel, The Military College of South Carolina 
where he earned his bachelor's in criminal justice.  After 
graduation, Deputy Markellos enlisted in the United 
States Marine Corps as an Infantry Squad Leader, having 
been deployed to Iraq, Jordan, and Syria before being 
honorable discharged in 2018 with the rank of Sergeant.   

Deputy Markellos enjoys the outdoors his home state of 
Maine has to offer, specifically waterfowl hunting, alpine 
skiing, and golf. Deputy Markellos currently holds an 
agency specialty serving as an Operator on the Southern 
Maine Special Response Team. 

productive members of our communities. 

     Our Civil Division continues to be productive and is the 
second largest Civil Processing Division in the state. All 
Civil Deputies wear uniforms and have full law enforcement 
authorities, which is a force multiplier for local law enforce-

ment as they go about their duties throughout the county. 

     Thank you for taking the time to read this bulletin. We 

welcome any suggestions or comments you may have. 

ITEM #2: (b.) Mail



Wreaths Across America 

Deputy Justin Titcomb and  assisted 
in escorting the Wreaths 
Across America convoy 
from Maine to Arlington 
National Cemetary. The 
wreaths were then placed 
at the final resting place 
for America's fallen sol-
diers. Deputy Titcomb is 
currently serving in the 
Army National Guard and 

Deputy Oliver is a U.S. Army Veteran.  On Day 4 of the 
Wreaths Across America convoy, York County Sheriff's 
Deputies were able to stop and pay respects at the New 
Jersey Vietnam Memorial in Holmdel, New Jersey.   

K-9 Corner
K-9 Rebel makes first drug/
gun seizure

On December 11, 2022, at ap-
prox. 4:30 am, Deputy Cody Fra-
zier and K-9 Rebel of the York 
County Sheriff's Office responded 
to a business in Cornish for a sus-
picious activity complaint. Deputy 
Frazier arrived on scene and lo-
cated the vehicle in ques-
tion.  During the subsequent in-
vestigation, K9 Rebel was de-
ployed to conduct an exterior sniff of the involved vehi-
cle. K-9 Rebel had just recently graduated from narcotic 
detector school.  K9 Rebel alerted to the odor of illegal 
narcotics. A search of the vehicle was conducted and 

1.9 grams of meth, 5.1 grams 
of fentanyl, along with a fire-
arm and other drug related 
items were located. Richard 
Fenderson (50 years old of 
Hiram) was charged with Un-
lawful Possession of Fentanyl 
and Unlawful Possession of 
Methamphetamines. 

Field Force Team Training 
Deputy Oliver recently attended 
phase two of the Field Force 
training at the FEMA Academy in 
Anniston, Alabama. This training 
concentrated on extrication of 
individuals on highways or build-
ings 
disrupt travel or commerce.  The 
York County Sheriff's Office is 
spearheading a regional Field 
Force Team consisting of officers 
from area police departments.   

Traffic Detail in Lebanon  
leads to large drug seizure 

The York County Sheriff's Office has been awarded 
$37,401 from the Maine Bureau of Highway Safety to 
conduct specialized traffic enforcement details. These 
details focus on speed, distracted driving, and impaired 
operators. The deputies are assigned areas where fre-
quent crashes take place or community members re-
port issues.  On Tuesday, February 14, 2023, at approx. 
1230 pm. Deputy Cody Frazier stopped a vehicle on Rt. 
202 in Lebanon for a traffic infraction.  Probable cause 
was established to search the vehicle and located was 
approx. 109 grams of fentanyl and 161 grams of crystal 
methamphetamine. The street value of the fentanyl is 
approx. $15,000 and the methamphetamine approx. 
$16,000. Also seized 
was $1,860.00 in sus-
pected drug pro-
ceeds.  The defendant 
was charged with two 
counts of Aggravated 
Trafficking of Sched-
uled Drugs (Class A).  

Honor Guard Appearances: 
The Honor Guard has made many appearances to display the 
colors at such venues as Cross Insurance Arena, Hadlock Field, 
and Fenway Park.  They also 
participate in other events to  
include funerals, dedications, 
and parades.  We have a very 
professional group of employ-
ees from both the patrol and 
corrections divisions that  
dedicate their time to be a  
part of this great unit. 



Community Events 

On December 27th, Depu-
ty Cody Frazier and K-9 
Rebel met with students at 
the Carl L. Lamb School in 
Sanford. Deputy Frazier 
spoke about the K-9 pro-
gram and how K-9 Rebel 
serves our communities.  

York County Jail Corrections Graduation 

On December 21st, 2022, eight York County Correctional Officers graduated from the 71st Basic 
Corrections Training Program at the Windham Correctional Facility. 

Staff Pictured:  
1.) Chief Deputy Jeremy Forbes 

2.) JA Major Nathan Thayer 
3.) Training LT Michael Perry 

4.) Operations Captain Carl Ronco 
5.) Admin Captain David Lambert 

Newly Graduated: 
1.) Stanely White 

2.) Don-Peter Lane 
3.) Harry Reed 

4.) Tymoore Kashmiry 
5.) Matthew Probin 

6.) Tyler Stone 
7.) Janet Callahan 
8.) Lori Chagnon  

Welcome to the Team! 

Santa’s Helpers 
Deputy Titcomb assisted Santa in his yearly duties at an 
event in Arundel this 
past Christmas. 

Jail Staffing is a Challenge 

Staffing jails is a challenge in the state of Maine and across 

the Country.  The York County Jail is no different.  We found 

ourselves in a State of Emergency, nearly every week for 

over a year.  This is costly and the burden placed on staff 

having to cover the vacant hours does cause burnout 

amongst our staff.  Since the start of the quarter, we have 

not gone into a State of Emergency.  We have identified 

recruitment and retention as a priority.  We had to think 

creatively and change some of our hiring practices because 

and we had 3 more graduates on February 27, 2023 from 

the Maine Criminal Justice Academy.  We renovated our 

small break room and created a large breakroom for all 

are 

increasing allowing us to start the process for promotional 

opportunities and Specialty team opportunities.   

Front row Left to right:  Officer Kelsey Daniels, Officer Tiffany 

Phelps,  and Officer 

Wayne Plummer  

Back row left to right: 

Capt. Dave Lambert, 

Jail Administrator 

Nathan Thayer, and 

Chief Jeremy Forbes  

Congrats! 



  Jail Programs 

The York County Jail has and will continue to create a culture of respect. Staff and resi-

dents incarcerated are expected to treat one another respectfully.  The York County Jail 

has spent much of its efforts on resident programming to ensure resident success in the 

community when released from Incarceration.   

, which offers 

medication and treatment.  The treatment program includes 

for residents in recovery, and a robust re-entry process.  In January we had 3 residents 

successfully complete an online 30-hour peer recovery coach training from inside the jail.  

Other Programs we are offering are HISETT, college courses, guitar 

classes, art classes, gardening (Seasonal), and Life Skills (Resume  

interviews, etc.).  Recently there was an art show, Life of 

Winter, hosted at Nasson facility in Springvale.   Artwork 

created by the residents at the jail was on display, and 

there were even offers to purchase the artwork.  

VIDEO VISITATIONS 
Technology is becoming more integrated with jails and 

prisons around the country.  The York County Jail has 

followed this trend by 

bringing in tablets and 

video visitation.  The resi-

dents can communicate 

with family and friends 

through text, email, and 

calling on the tablets.  

These tablets also provide a source for educational 

and entertainment purposes.   

The video visitation allows 

family and friends to have 

a video visit from the com-

forts of their homes.  This 

is especially important for 

those residents whose 

families live out of State.  

Jail Security 

Upgrades  

all cameras in the jail replaced and the software upgraded 
to meet the security needs of the facility.  A body scanner 
was bought to increase security and decrease the amount of 
contraband brought into the facility by newly arrested indi-
viduals.  We are currently having all our PLC’s 
(Programmable Logic Controller) replaced.  The PLC’s are 
the brains behind equipment such as doors, locks, touch 
screens, intercoms, and cameras.  The system we had was 
the original system which was outdated and was no longer 
upgradeable.  This new system will be much safer for staff 
and residents.   

As of today's date, we have had 294 intakes from 
01/01/2023 thru 02/28/2023.  Our partnership with Maine 
Pre-trial is tremendous and they are an asset to keeping our 
population manageable.  The population at the York County 
Jail is running on average 92% Pre-trial or unsentenced.   

actual tablet provided 



ITEM #2: (b.) Mail





Town of Lyman 

Select Board Regular Meeting Minutes 

Monday March 20th, 2023 – Lyman Town Hall 

Page 1 of 7 

Selectboard members present: Ralph “Rusty” Blackington (Chair), Thomas Hatch (Vice Chair), David Alves, 
Jessica Picard, John Tibbetts  
Selectboard members absent: none 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 
1.M.R.S.A §405 (C) real or personal property matters.
1.M.R.S.A §405 (A) personnel matters

Thomas Hatch – Motions to go into executive session per 1.M.R.S.A 405 (C) real or personal property matters and 405 
(A) personnel matters.
Jessica Picard – Seconds the motion. Motion passes: 5-0-0

Jessica Picard – Makes a motion to come out of executive session. John Tibbetts seconds. Motion passes: 5-0-0 

David Alves – Motions to restructure payment on back taxes owed on account number 1401 Map and Lot 11-118-22 
with no professional fees for a 38 and half month period at $300.00 per month.  
Thomas Hatch – Seconds the motion. Motion passes: 5-0-0 

ITEM #1 SPECIAL OFFERS/ PRESENTATIONS 
none 

ITEM #2 HEARING OF DELEGATIONS / PUBLIC INPUT 
a. Public Input – Public in attendance will have up to 5 minutes to address the Board.

Please use the podium to address the board.
Brad Nikel -Requests the Board’s approval for him to initiate a Go Fund Me page to raise funds 
to put a granite bench for Maurice St. Claire to be put over at the library.  

o Katrina Randal – Inquiry regarding property access dispute off of Old County Rd
Katrina Randal – Explains a resident, Ray Poirier, has been barring access on sections of
Stagecoach Road. She explains this road has been discontinued by the Town and does not seem
to have a public easement established to allow abutters to travel over the abandoned roadway.
She submits letters and copies of state statutes regarding abandoned roads into the record.
Records indicate the Town voted in 1921 to discontinue the Stagecoach Road. She would like
the Town to contact the individual to instruct them passage can be made by others on this
roadway.
David Ales – Asks if the CEO has had any issues with this?
Brenda Charland – States she currently is dealing with five discontinued roads and inquiries
regarding buildable land lots. If the property owners don’t claim the land to the centerline of the
road in their deed then the there will remain a public easement. Because the roads fall on the
zoning map for Lyman, she believes she is obligated to issue a building permit on these roads.
However, some of these roads are being blocked off by property owners, some are being
maintained by property owners, and some are not being maintained.
Katrina Randal – Reads guidelines explaining any roads discontinued prior to September 3rd,
1965 left no public easement and case law dictated that ownership of the way reverted back to
the abutters on each side to the centerline of the road. Abutters may legally bar the public from
using the road in this situation, however the exception to this rule is a public easement is
retained in a pre-1965 discontinuance if the warrant article authorizing the discontinuance

DRAFT
ITEM #3: (a.) Minutes



Town of Lyman 

Select Board Regular Meeting Minutes 

Monday March 20th, 2023 – Lyman Town Hall 

Page 2 of 7 

specifically provides for the retention of a public easement. Abandonment occurring after 
September 3rd, 1965 terminates the Town’s maintenance obligations and a public easement is 
automatically retained.  
David Alves – Makes a motion to look into the language of the 1921 warrant article.  
John Tibbetts – Seconds the motion. Motion passes: 5-0-0 

o Karen Kane – Inquiry regarding forming a Bunganut committee
Karen Kane – Proposes to the Board that they form a committee for Bunganut Park to help
move improvements forward. The committee would work with the Board liaisons for the beach
side and field side to help support plans around the ARPA funding project. They would also look
into management strategies for the Park and over a longer term, serve to prospect better
improvements overall and how to get more activities year-round.
John Tibbetts – Recommends having Parks and Recs participate with the committee as well.
David Alves – Makes a motion to form a Bunganut Park Committee with Thomas Hatch as
Beach Side liaison and Ralph Blackington as Field Side liaison.
John Tibbetts – Seconds the motion. Motion passes: 5-0-0
Ralph Blackington – Suggests the board have a workshop to discuss some of the logistics.

Jessica Picard – Makes a motion to take Item #6, letter (d) out of order.  
John Tibbetts – Seconds the motion. Motion passes: 5-0-0 
Don Hernon – Explains the Planning Board put together an article question to go to a Town Vote 
for an ordinance amendment on Contract Zoning. Primarily the amendment would remove the 
language “but not limited to” and add language “provides reasonable expectations of an overall 
benefit to the Town as a whole.”. The current language seems to be too open ended and does 
not mirror state statute on contract zoning. The Planning Board is requesting the Board put this 
on Town Meeting floor rather than secret ballot so there can be discussion of the amendment if 
voters have questions.  
Thomas Hatch – States Funky Bow was one of the contract zoning permits. If the language were 
to be removed as stated above, would a similar situation like that be able to happen again? 
Don Hernon – States it would be able to because a brewery is allowed in other zones. He states 
he thinks the Town shouldn’t allow a contract for something that isn’t allowed anywhere else in 
the Town. The words “but not limited to” allows for more wiggle room.  
David Alves – States we have a new Charter with a new procedure in place for ordinance 
amendments so more citizens can get involved and vote on these. The Planning Board had a 
public hearing and nobody showed or gave comment on this and that is the reason he 
advocated to have the new procedure added to the revised Charter. He feels the public should 
be more informed and have the Ordinance Review Committee get involved in this.  
Joe Wagner – States with the language “but not limited to” an applicant may press the limits 
potentially into litigation.  

b. Mail     none
c. Complaint none

ITEM #3 MINUTES 
a. Review / Approve meeting minutes 3/6/2023.

David Alves – States on page four he said the leagues were putting together their Fall programs
together, he meant to say the Spring programs and wanted to clarify that.
Jessica Picard – Motions to accept the minutes. David Alves seconds. Motion passes: 4-0-1
(Thomas Hatch abstains, he was not present at the last meeting).

DRAFT



Town of Lyman 

Select Board Regular Meeting Minutes 

Monday March 20th, 2023 – Lyman Town Hall 

Page 3 of 7 

ITEM #4 SIGN WARRANTS 
a. Payroll Warrant #41 in the amount of $27,177.74

Thomas Hatch – Motions to accept. Jessica Picard seconds. Motion passes: 5-0-0
b. Accounts Payable Warrant #40 (FY2023) in the amount of $64,664.62

Thomas Hatch – Motions to accept. Jessica Picard seconds. Motions passes: 5-0-0

ITEM #5 UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
a. Annual Town Report Dedication – Tabled from last meeting.

There is discussion among the board to elect the Cemetery Committee and include a memoriam
page for Maurice ST. Claire.
David Alves – Makes a motion to dedicate the Town Report to the Cemetery Committee
Thomas Hatch – Seconds the motion. Motion passes: 5-0-0

b. ARPA funding – discuss RFPs. Where are we at
David Alves – Motions to take Item #7, letter (i) out of order. To address the purchase order to pay
the architect for the Kennebunk Pond Beach as this pertains to the ARPA funding.
Thomas Hatch – Seconds the motion. Motion passes: 5-0-0
David Alves – Motions to approve the Purchase Order for David Maines Architect Services.
John Tibbetts – Seconds the motion. Motion passes: 5-0-0
Karen Kane – Asks the Board if they will designate a deadline to get all the RFPs together and ready
to send out.
The board agrees all RFP drafts will be due by May 1st for the board to start the process advertising
them.

c. Appointment LHO – Review/ approve, application submitted.
Jessica Picard – Motions to appoint Eileen Kelly to the position of Local Health Officer.
David Alves – Seconds the motion: Motion passes: 5-0-0

d. Handicap ramp – discussion on project
Ralph Blackington – States he was told the ramp was not required for elections. Some discussion
with the board there may still be a need for general handicap accessibility and the board has already
approved the spending out of Capital Improvement.

e. Old Kennebunk Road – review/ discuss procedure, see email
Lindsay Gagne – Explains Town Council has outlined the procedure to start the process to abandon
the road. Town Council believes the Town already has the supporting evidence that the road has
been discontinued and is no longer being maintained which is the first step. The board will need to
schedule a public hearing. Affected property owners will need to be notified at least 30 days prior to
the hearing, which Town Council will ensure the notices will get sent out. The board will vote after
the public hearing to abandon the road and will also need to vote if a public easement will be
retained. After the appeals timeline is finished the decision and easement gets recorded in the
registry of deeds. At this time, the Board will need to schedule a public hearing.
Jessica Picard – Motions to schedule the Public Hearing for May 15th, 2023 at 6:00pm
Thomas Hatch – Seconds the motion. Motion passes: 5-0-0

f. Discuss Municipal Election, review/sign orders
Jessica Picard – Makes a motion to approve the order that the Municipal Election be held on June
13th, 2023. John Tibbetts – Seconds the motion. Motion passes: 5-0-0
Jessica Picard – Makes a motion to approve the order that the Annual Town Meeting be held on
June 15th, 2023. Thomas Hatch – Seconds the motion. Motion passes: 5-0-0

DRAFT



Town of Lyman 

Select Board Regular Meeting Minutes 

Monday March 20th, 2023 – Lyman Town Hall 

Page 4 of 7 

ITEM #6 DEPARTMENT AND COMMITTEE REPORTS 
a. Ordinance Review Committee –  review/approve bylaws & mission statement

Jessica Picard – Motions to approve the Ordinance Review Committee Bylaws and Mission
statement as submitted.
John Tibbetts – Seconds the motion. Motion passes: 5-0-0

b. Parks and Recs – Requested waiver for insurance documents, see email.
Holly Hart – Explains to the Board there is specific insurance information required per policy, but for
the bands that come out for the music in the park this is too much or them to fill out. They are not
licensed businesses that have these insurances available.
Jessica Picard – Makes a motion to waive any Parks and Recs entities that are working for the Town
less than two times a year. After brief discussion, Jessica Picard rescinds her motion.
Thomas Hatch – Asks to get confirmation the Town has appropriate coverage if they decide to waive
the insurance requirements.
Holly Hart – States they have talked with the bands, and they are not required to do this per other
Towns.
Jessica Picard – States if waiving these there should be parameters. The board can get more
information for the next agenda.
Holly Hart – Asks if the board will also waive the W9 because the band doesn’t have an LLC.
The Board discusses collecting more information to verify a few things.

c. Town Clerk – Requested waiver for insurance documents, see email.
Ralph Blackington – States this falls under the same as above. The board can gather some more
info.

d. Planning Board – Request to add Ordinance Amendment Article to Town Meeting Warrant.
Item moved out of order and discussed above.

e. Road Commissioner –
Brad Nikel – States he had a lot of issues with people pushing snow across the roads. He
recommends the Select Board notify violators with a certified letter that this is a finable offense and
send out a fine if violations continue. He will take a picture documenting it next to a mail box with a
house number. He also reports the Solar sign at Bunganut was destroyed but is still functioning. He
may be able to salvage the sign if it still works. He asks the Board what they want to do with South
Waterboro Road for the Budget. Reflective cracking is already coming up through. Lastly, He is
looking into some federal grant money for bridges and replacing some fish chase ways.
Jessica Picard – Confirms the board will be discussing South Waterboro Road in a workshop.
David Alves – Suggests the Board should look into getting a bond for the road.

f. Fire Chief –
Matt Duross – Recruitment for open positions is coming along. The extrication Equipment arrived,
and they are still waiting for the ballistic vests.

g. Tax Clerk – February Report , Reviewed in agenda packet.
h. CEO – Review/approve – Updates to fee schedule, review/approve. Discussed at last meeting

Jessica Picard – Motions to accept the updated fee schedule for Code Enforcement.
John Tibbetts – Seconds the motion. Motion passes; 5-0-0

i. Board of Assessment Review –
o Discuss board secretary/ duties.
o Appointment – application received for board member.
Jessica Picard – States she provided some support at their public hearing, so the board is caught up
with this latest application. She reviewed the secretarial duties of the committees and thinks the
committee may need clarification on the duties. Some duties such as filing can be done by

DRAFT



Town of Lyman 

Select Board Regular Meeting Minutes 

Monday March 20th, 2023 – Lyman Town Hall 

Page 5 of 7 

departments in the Town and the committee will be responsible for drafting letters of decisions and 
recording their meetings, etc.  
David Alves – Makes a motion to appoint Charles Harrison to the Board of Assessment Review 
Jessica Picard – Second the motion. Motion passes: 5-0-0 

j. Treasurer – none
g. Town Hall Expansion Committee – Review/ approve quotes received for Survey of Town Hall.

Brad Nikel – States the Town Hall Expansion Committee solicited three separate quotes. Their
recommendation is to go with Stephen Everette. He has a great track record, and his response time
was quicker than the other two.
Jessica Picard – Verifies this is within the budget for Town Hall Expansion and the vendor will hold
this amount as quoted.
John Tibbets – Motions to award the services to Stephen Everette.
Jessica Picard – Seconds the motion: Motion passes: 5-0-0

k. Other  -

ITEM #7 NEW BUSINESS 
a. Committee Request for AV/IT Equipment Use –

o Budget: Michelle, Vicky
o ORC: Mike, Peggy
Jessica Picard – Motions to approve Michelle Feliccitti, Michael Rancourt, Peggy MacDonald, and
Vicky Gavel.
John Tibbets – Seconds the motion. Motion passes: 5-0-0

b. Appointment – Application received for Comprehensive Plan Committee
There is discussion among the board. One application submitted so far, and the board may want to
wait until more applications come in. In the meantime, the Town can contact former committee
members if they are interested.

c. Cemetery Committee – Review/approve resignation, see email.
Jessica Picard – Makes a motion to accept Celeste Hatch’s resignation from the Cemetery
Committee effective September 1st, 2022.
David Alves – Seconds the motion. Motion passes: 5-0-0

d. Discuss procedure/policy re: contacting Town Attorney
Jessica Picard – States legal inquiries should be funneled through the Select Board Clerk to ensure
the Board has the documentation and to help avoid asking similar questions multiple times. The
board clerk can determine if other resources like MMA can be utilized first. If the decision by the
Select Board Clerk is not favored, then the decision will be up to the Select Board.

e. Assessor Request for Board approval, see email.
Lindsay Gagne – Explains the IT contractor won’t provide remote services on someone’s personal
device due to security risks but suggested loaning out a town-owned computer for the Assessor’s
training.
Ralph Blackington – States he would loan out his computer.
Jessica Picard – Makes a motion approving remote access via town-owned device.
David Alves – Seconds the motion. Motion passes: 5-0-0

f. Assessor Request to contact Town Council
Discussion with the board and the board agrees to filter the request through the Select Board Clerk.

g. Review/approve Key policy for Lock box
David Alves – States he’s been addressed by some employees the cameras in the public areas are
video and audio.

DRAFT



Town of Lyman 

Select Board Regular Meeting Minutes 

Monday March 20th, 2023 – Lyman Town Hall 

Page 6 of 7 

Thomas Hatch – States there have been incidents in the past, and this offers employees protection. 
Brenda Charland – States she would have liked it communicated.  
Jessica Picard – Reviews the policy and verifies the board has the authority in the interim of a Town 
Manager to assign access to keys. 
Jessica Picard – Makes a motion to approve the access key policy. 
Thomas Hatch – Seconds the motion.  
Discussion employees will have mobile access to the lock box and the cleaners will not have 
access to the vault.  
Motion passes: 5-0-0 

h. Approve PO for Jim Thomas GIS Services.
David Alves - Makes a motion to approve. Jessica Picard seconds. Motion passes: 5-0-0

i. Approve PO for Kennebunk Pond Beach Committee Quote for Architect Services
Item moved out of order and discussed above.

OTHER 

David Alves – Makes a motion to form an IT committee.  
Jessica Picard - Seconds the motion.  
Motion passes: 5-0-0 
Lindsay Gagne – Explains the revised Charter dictates the Town Manager prepares a statement of purpose for 
committees. In lieu of a Town Manager, the Board will need to draft a purpose for the committee.  
Jessica Picard – Suggests herself and David Alves can draft something for the next meeting.  

John Tibbetts – Motions to approve Brad Nikel’s request to start a Go Fund Me page to raise funds for a memorial 
bench for Maurice St. Clair to be placed at the library. 
Brad Nikel – Explains the Go Fund Me would be set up in a way that any additional funds collected above what it cost 
for a bench, the residual amount can go to another project. He recommends giving residual amounts to the Fire 
department. This can be clarified in the Go Fund Me page.  
David Alves – Seconds the motion.  
Brad Nikel – States he would start the page as soon as he can get a quote on what it would cost for a bench. He would 
implement a start and end date once it’s set up.  
Motion passes: 5-0-0 

Karen Kane – States she has recommended to the board to dedicate the Town Hall expansion to Maurice ST. Clair. 
Thomas Hatch – States the board will take that under consideration when the building project gets going.  

ADJOURN 

David Alves – Makes amotion to adjourn. 
Jessica Picard – Seconds the motion. 
Motion passes: 5-0-0 DRAFT



Town of Lyman 

Select Board Regular Meeting Minutes 

Monday March 20th, 2023 – Lyman Town Hall 

Page 7 of 7 

__________________________________________ 
Ralph “Ralph” Blackington (Chair) 

__________________________________________ 
Thomas Hatch (Vice Chair) 

_____________________________________________ 

David Alves 

_____________________________________________ 

Jessica Picard 

_____________________________________________ 

John Tibbetts 

I, Lindsay Gagne, Clerk to the Select Board of the Town of Lyman, Maine, do hereby certify that the foregoing document consisting 
of 7 pages are the original minutes of the Board of Selectmen Regular Meeting dated March 20th, 2023 

_____________________________________ 

Lindsay Gagne

DRAFT



ITEM #4: (a.) Payroll Warrant





ITEM #4: (b.) AP Warrant













TOWN OF LYMAN, MAINE 
PLANNING BOARD 

PROPOSED REVISION TO LYMAN ZONING ORDINANCE 
FOR JUNE 2023 TOWN MEETING WARRANT ARTICLE 

March 16, 2023 

To: Lyman Select Board 

Subject: Proposed Revision to Town of Lyman Zoning Ordinance 

Reference: (a) Lyman Zoning Ordinance (LZO) Amendment Procedure Article 1.8

The Planning Board held a public hearing on March 15, 2023 on the attached LZO amendment. 
No public comments were received. After reviewing the amendment at the March 15, 2023 PB 
meeting, the PB voted to refer the attached amendment to the Select Board for inclusion as an 
Article for the Annual Town Meeting in June 2023. 

Please refer to the attached proposed LZO amendment for inclusion on the June 2023 Town of 
Lyman Annual Town Meeting Warrant, as an Article to be voted on at the meeting.  

Roderick Tetu 
Roderick Tetu, Chairman 

Attached: 

Proposed Lyman Zoning Ordinance Amendment for June 2023 Town Meeting Warrant Article 

Copy to with proposed amendment: 

Town Clerk 
Code Enforcement Officer 
PB members 

ITEM #5: (b.) Planning Board - Request



Lyman Zoning Ordinance Amendment for June 2023 Town Meeting Warrant Article 

Shall an amendment to the Town of Lyman Zoning Ordinance Article 1, Section 1.8.3 

Contract Zoning be enacted as follows: 

Deleted language struck through Added language underlined  

1.8.3 Contract Zoning 

B. Authorization

Fourth sentence:

Areas rezoned under this provision shall be consistent with, but not limited to, the existing and 
permitted (whether permitted or with site plan approved conditional) uses within any zoning 
district. 

F. Recommendation

Before forwarding a recommendation of a contract zoning amendment to the Board of 
Selectmen, the Planning Board shall make a finding on each of the four standards in this 
subsection. A favorable recommendation to the Board of Selectmen requires a positive finding 
on all four standards. If the Planning Board makes a negative finding on any of the standards, its 
recommendation shall be negative. The Planning Board shall base its recommendations on 
whether the rezoning: 

1. Is for land with an unusual nature or location
1. Is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan;
2. Is consistent with, but not limited to, the existing uses and permitted uses within any

zoning district; and
3. That the conditions proposed are sufficient to meet the intent of this section; and
4. Provides reasonable expectations of an overall benefit to the Town as a whole.



ITEM #5: (d.) Stage Coach Rd, 
Discussion from last meeting to 
review Town Warrant from 1921













ITEM #5: (e.) Review/Approve Field Use Request Forms









Town of Lyman 

Committee Project Statement   IT Committee 

Enacting Provisions 

The Information Technology (IT) Committee is established under the appointing authority of and 

accountable to the Town of Lyman Select Board. It shall function as stipulated in its purpose and in 

accordance with Municipal Charter and state statute.  

Composition 

Members shall be appointed and/or reappointed by the Select Board on the basis of their expertise in 

information technology and related fields.  

The committee shall consist of seven to nine members all serving a three-year term, in which terms shall 

be staggered or varied in accordance with Municipal Charter. Members can apply to be reappointed.  

The Committee shall elect from within its members a Chair and a Correspondence Secretary. 

Purpose of the Committee 

The IT Committee shall provide advisory support to special projects related to information technology 

and shall assist with establishing strategic plans, principles and policies relevant to information 

technology. The IT Committee may support other committees with livestreaming/recording public 

meetings.  

The Select Board may call to action the IT Committee to respond to delegated tasks at the Boards 

discretion, in so far as, it is related to information technology.  

General Provisions 

The Committee shall meet at least one time per year to fulfil its duties of electing a Chairperson and 

Correspondence Secretary.  

The Committee shall hold all meetings open to the public and ensure adequate notification is published 

in accordance with state statute.  

On matters pertaining to delegated tasks, special projects and/or review of strategic plans and policies 

the Committee shall provide to the Select Board their recommendations in writing, which will be subject 

to final approval of the Board.  

All records created and/or obtained by the Committee are under ownership of the Town of Lyman and 

must be submitted to the Town for records retention.  

The Committee shall uphold the requirements of Municipal Charter and applicable state statues 

regarding municipal functions of government.  

ITEM #5: (f.) IT Committee Project Statement



ITEM #6: (d.) Town Zoning Map Updates



ITEM #6: (e.) Treasurer Expense Report 3/30/2023





















ITEM #7: (a.) TRIO Upgrades request









ITEM #7: (b.) Request forboard approval for sub-letting



mnikel
Highlight





ITEM #7: (c.) Request for waivers

mnikel
Highlight



mnikel
Highlight

mnikel
Highlight

mnikel
Highlight

mnikel
Highlight

mnikel
Highlight

mnikel
Highlight






